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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Twenty nineth Annual report on the business and
operations of the Company together with Audited statements of accounts for the year ended 31st
March, 2023.

The summarised financial results of the Company are given here under:

Year Year
(Rs.’00) (Rs.’00)

Profit before Interest, Depreciation & taxes 67,400 19,813
Less: Finance Charges
Profit / (Loss) before Depreciation & Taxes 63,921
Less: Depreciation 110 110
Profit/(Loss) Before Provision & Taxes 63,811 19,703
Current Tax 14,255

Deferred Tax (3) (39)
Income Tax for the previous year (38)
Profit/(Loss) after Tax 49,553 14,326
Transfer to Reserve Fund 9,911 2,865

Balance brought forward from last year 50,426 38,968
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 92,320 50,426

FINANCIALHIGHLIGHTS

Current Previous

— —
19,813

5,300
Add/(Less):

Less: Excess Provision written back 2,251 —

—

COMPANYPERFORMANCEANDREVIEWOFBUSINESSOPERATIONS
During the year, the revenue from operations of your Company increased by 11% over the previous
year. The Company has recorded a profit of Rs.49.55 lacs for the financial year ended 31st March,
2023.

Your Directors are striving for increase in revenue of the Company and thereby increasing
profitability.

With a view to conserving resources and building up reserves, your Directors do not recommend
paymentofDividend for the year.

Your directors are hopeful that the performance of theCompanywill improve in the coming year.

DIVIDEND

STATEOFCOMPANYAFFAIRS
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITIONOFTHECOMPANY

FUTUREOUTLOOK

DEPOSITS

TRANSFERTORESERVES

SHARECAPITAL

CHANGEINNATUREOFBUSINESS, IFANY

MEETINGSOFBOARDOFDIRECTORS

There are nomaterial changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which
have occurred between the endof the financial year 2022-23 and the date of this report.

The general business conditions affecting business are expected to remain stable and company is
expected to performwell.

The Company has not invited or accepted deposits from the public covered under Section 73 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 andTheCompanies (Acceptance ofDeposits)Rules, 2014.

An amount ofRs.9.91 lacs has been transferred to theReserve Fund.

As on 31st March, 2023, the Company's paid-up Equity Share Capital was Rs. 4,24,73,000/-
comprising of 42,47,300 Equity Shares of FaceValue of Re. 10/- each andRs. 34,95,600/- received on
account of 8,04,800 forfeited shares. There has not been any change in the Equity Share Capital of the
Company during the FinancialYear ended 31stMarch, 2023. During the FinancialYear 2022-23, your
Company has neither issued any shares or convertible securities nor has granted any stock options or
sweat equity.

There has not been any change in the nature of business of the Company during the FY ended 31st
March, 2023.

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2023, 8 Board Meetings were held on 12th
May,2022,27th May, 2022, 11th August, 2022, 11th November, 2022, 16th January, 2023,25th
January,2023, 8th February, 2023 and 15th March, 2023. The intervening gap between the Meetings
waswithin the period prescribedunder theCompaniesAct, 2013.
Attendance of directors at theBoardMeetings [Whether attended (Yes/No)]:

Board Mr. Sanjay Mr.KeshavKr. Mr.BholaNath Ms.Mamta Mr.Anuj Mr. Laxmikant Mr.Anup Ms.Poonam
Meeting Agarwal Saraf Manna Sharma Agarwal Jajodia Chattopadhyay Bathwal
Date

12thMay, Yes Yes Yes Yes NA NA NA NA
2022

27thMay, Yes Yes Yes Yes NA NA NA NA
2022

(DIN-00571217)(DIN-00595594) (DIN-03345433) (DIN-07080870)(DIN-02984121) (DIN-00570216) (DIN-10042485) (DIN-10045592)
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11thAugust,Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes NA NA NA NA
2022

11thNovember, Yes Yes Yes Yes NA NA NA NA
2022

16th January, Yes Yes Yes Yes NA NA NA NA
2023

25th January, NA NA NA Yes Yes Yes NA NA
2023

8thFebruary, NA Yes NA Yes Yes Yes NA NA
2023

15thMarch, NA Yes No Yes Yes Yes NA NA
2023

TOTAL 5 7 5 8 3 3 0 0

INTERNALCONTROLSYSTEMSANDTHEIRADEQUACY

STATUTORYAUDITORS

STATUTORYAUDITORS'REPORT

REPORTINGOFFRAUDSBYAUDITORS

The Company has an Internal Control System, which has been designed to provide a reasonable
assurance with regard to maintaining of proper accounting controls, monitoring of operations,
protecting assets from unauthorized use or losses, compliance with regulations and for ensuring
reliability of financial reporting.

At the 27th Annual General meeting held on September 21, 2021, the members had appointed M/s.
B.P.Agarwal andAssociates, CharteredAccountants, Kolkata, having registration number 316155E as
the statutory auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years upto March 31, 2026 and therefore they
continue to hold office.
Pursuant to Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, M/s. B.P.Agarwal and Associates have represented that they are not disqualified and
continue to be eligible to act as theAuditor of theCompany.M/s. B.P.Agarwal andAssociates have also
confirmed that they have been subjected to the peer review process of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) and holds a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of ICAI as
required underRegulation 33(1)(d) of the ListingRegulations.

There has been no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Statutory
Auditor in their Report for the year under review.
The Notes on Financial Statements referred to in theAuditors' Report are self-explanatory and do not
call for any further comments.

In terms of Section 143(12) of the CompaniesAct, 2013, theAuditors have not reported any instances
of frauds committed in theCompany by itsOfficers orEmployees during the year under review.

STEPTWO CORPORATION LIMITED



DIRECTORS ANDKMP

DECLARATIONBYINDEPENDENTDIRECTORS

ANNUALEVALUATIONBYTHEBOARD

SITUATIONOFREGISTEREDOFFICEOFTHECOMPANY

PARTICULARSOFLOANS,GUARANTEESORINVESTMENTS

PARTICULARSOFCONTRACTSORARRANGEMENTSWITHRELATEDPARTIES

Mr.Laxmi Kant Jajodia was appointed as an additional director, independent and non-executive, on
theBoard of theCompanyw.e.f.16.01.2023.
Mr.AnujAgarwalwas appointed as an additional director, promoter and executive, on theBoard of the
Companyw.e.f.16.01.2023.
Mr.BholaNathManna resigned from theBoardw.e.f.16.01.2023.
Mr.SanjayAgarwal resigned from theBoardw.e.f.16.01.2023.
Mr.Anup Chattopadhyaywas appointed as an additional director, independent and non-executive, on
theBoard of theCompanyw.e.f.15.03.2023.
Ms.PoonamBathwal was appointed as an additional director, professional and non-executive, on the
Board of theCompanyw.e.f.15.03.2023.
Ms.Mamta Sharma resigned from theBoardw.e.f.15.03.2023.
Mr.KeshavKumarSaraf resigned from theBoardw.e.f.15.03.2023.
Mr.AnujAgarwalwas also appointed as theManagingDirector of theCompanyw.e.f.25.01.2023.
Ms. PoonamBathwal,Director of theCompany, retires by rotation and being eligible offers herself for
re-appointment.TheBoard recommends her reappointment at the ensuingAnnualGeneralMeeting.
Ms.PoonamBathwalwas also appointed as thewhole-timeCompanySecretaryw.e.f.15.03.2023.
Ms.Mamta Sharma resigned fromher position asCompanySecretaryw.e.f.15.03.2023.

The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director of the Company
under Section 149(7)of the CompaniesAct, 2013 that the IndependentDirectors of the Companymeet
with the criteria of their Independence laid down inSection 149 (6).

The Board has made a formal evaluation of its own performance and that of its committees and
individual directors as requiredunder Section 134(3) (p) of theCompaniesAct, 2013.

The address of the registered office of the Company was changed w.e.f.15.03.2023 to “Avani
Signature”, 91A/1, Park Street, 7th Floor, Kolkata –700016.

Since the Company is a Non Banking Finance Company, the disclosure regarding particulars of loans
given, guarantees given and security provided is exempt under the provisions of Section 186 (11) of
theCompaniesAct, 2013.

There are no related party transactions during the year and henceforth particulars of every contract or
arrangements entered into by the Company with Related Parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 in FormAOC-2 prescribed under the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not
attached.
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SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTVENTURESANDASSOCIATECOMPANIES

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTIONFUND

PROCEEDINGUNDERINSOLVENCYANDBANKRUPTCYCODE,2016

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITIONOFTHECOMPANY

SIGNIFICANTAND MATERIALORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS / COURTS /
TRIBUNALS

SHARES
a. BUYBACKOFSECURITIES

b. SWEATEQUITY

c. BONUSSHARES

d. EMPLOYEESSTOCKOPTIONPLAN

PARTICULARSOFEMPLOYEES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary or Associate. During the year, the Company has not
entered into any JointVenture.

There is no unpaid/ unclaimed dividend. Hence, the provisions of Section 125 of the CompaniesAct,
2013donot apply.

There are no proceedings, either filed by the Company or against the Company, pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 as amended, before the National Company Law Tribunal or
other Courts as on31stMarch, 2023.

There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the
financial statements relate and the date of the report.

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact the
going concern status of theCompany and its future operations.

TheCompanyhas not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.

TheCompanyhas not issued anySweat Equity Shares during the year under review.

NoBonusShareswere issued during the year under review.

TheCompany has not provided anyStockOptionScheme to the employees.

Statement containing particulars of Top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the
particulars of employees as required under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 5(2) and (3) of the Companies (Appointment andRemuneration ofManagerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 is provided inAnnexure '1' formingpart of this report.

(5)
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There was no employee receiving remuneration during the year in excess of that drawn by the
Managing Director or Whole-time Director and holding by himself or along with his spouse and
dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of theCompany.

The company has no activity relating to conservation of energy or technology absorption, details of
which are required to be furnished in this report as per the provision of Section 134 (m) of the
CompaniesAct, 2013, readwith theCompanies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Therewere no foreign exchange earning and outgo during the year.

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the CompaniesAct, 2013, with respect
toDirectors' ResponsibilityStatement, theDirectors hereby confirm that:-

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2023, the applicable
accounting standards, have been followed and there are nomaterial departures from the same;

(ii) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of theCompany as at the end of the financial year and of the profit of theCompany
for that period;

(iii) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of thisAct for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; and

(iv) theDirectors have prepared the annual accounts of theCompanyona 'going concern' basis.
(v) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and that such systemswere adequate and operating effectively.
(vi) the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that

such internal financial controls are adequate andwere operating effectively.

The Company has a defined Risk Management framework to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate
various risks to key business objectives. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are
systematically addressed throughmitigating actions on a continuing basis.

Your Company's Remuneration Policy enumerates the criteria for appointment and remuneration of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel on the basis of their
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director and other matters as required under
Section178(3) of theCompaniesAct, 2013.

CONSERVATIONOFENERGY&TECHNOLOGYABSORPTION:

FOREIGNEXCHANGEEARNING&OUTGO

DIRECTORS'RESPONSIBILITYSTATEMENT

RISKMANAGEMENTPOLICY

REMUNERATIONPOLICY

STEPTWO CORPORATION LIMITED
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BOARDDIVERSITYPOLICY

WHISTLEBLOWERPOLICY/VIGILMECHANISM

POLICYFORDETERMININGMATERIALITYOFEVENTS/ INFORMATION

CODEOFCONDUCT

CODE OF CONDUCT TO REGULATE, MONITOR AND REPORT TRADING BY
DESIGNATED PERSONS AND CODE OF PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES FOR FAIR
DISCLOSUREOFUNPUBLISHEDPRICESENSITIVE INFORMATION

ANNUALRETURN

Your Company recognizes and embraces the importance of a diverse Board in its success and aims to
attract andmaintain a Boardwhichhas an appropriatemix of diversity, skills, experience and expertise.
TheBoard composition as on the date of this reportmeets the above objective.

The Company has established a vigil mechanism which monitors through theAudit committee to take
care of the genuine concerns expressed by the employees and other Directors. The Company has also
provided adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and Directors who express their
concern. The Company has also provided direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee on
reporting issues concerning the interests of company employees and theCompany.

The Company's Policy for determination of materiality of events/ information has been designed to
promote transparency and ensures that the stakeholders are informed regarding the major and material
events of the Company. The objective of this policy is to put in place a framework for disclosure of
events and information to the stock exchanges, in line with the requirements prescribed under
Regulation 30 of the Listing Regulations and to ensure that such information is disclosed to the Stock
Exchanges in a timely and transparentmanner.

Details of the Company's Code of Conduct for members of its Board and for Senior Management
Personnel framed in terms of Regulation 17(5) of the Listing Regulations have been included in the
CorporateGovernanceReport forming part of theAnnualReport.
All Board members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of
conduct for FY 2022-2023. A declaration to this effect signed by the Whole-time Director of the
Company is included in thisAnnualReport.

With an aim to guard the interest of general investors, your Company has laid down a 'Code of Conduct
to regulate,monitor and report trading byDesignated Persons' which is applicable to all the Promoters,
Directors and such other persons defined as designated persons and to their immediate relatives aswell.

Your Company has adopted a Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished
Price Sensitive Information. This Code lays down principles and practices to be followed by the
Companywith respect to adequate and timelydisclosure of unpublished price sensitive information.

TheAnnual Return as required under Section 134(3)(a) read with Section 92(3) of the CompaniesAct,
2013, is placed on theCompany'swebsite and is available on theweblink: http://www.steptwo.in

STEPTWO CORPORATION LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT AND REPORT OF THE
DIRECTORSONCORPORATEGOVERNANCE

CEO&CFOCERTIFICATION

SECRETARIALAUDITREPORT

COMMITTEESOFBOARDOFDIRECTORS

Pursuant to the ListingRegulations, a separate section titled 'CorporateGovernance' has been included
in thisAnnual Report, along with the Reports on 'Management Discussion andAnalysis' and 'General
Shareholder Information'.

In terms of Regulation 17(8) readwith Schedule II Part B of the Listing Regulations, a certificate from
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company addressed to the Board of
Directors, inter alia, confirming the correctness of the financial statements and cash flow statements
for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023, adequacy of the internal control measures and
reportingofmatters to theAudit Committee, is provided elsewhere in thisAnnualReport.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed
Mr. Navneet Jhunjhunwala of M/s N.Jhunjhunwala & Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries in
Practice (FCS No.6397, CP No.5184) to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The
SecretarialAudit Report is annexed herewith. The samedoes not contain any qualification, reservation
or adverse remark or disclaimer.

The Board has seven Committees out of which five have been mandatorily constituted in compliance
with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations and two non-mandatory
Committees have been constituted. The Board has constituted following Committees to deal with
matters and tomonitor activities fallingwithin their respective terms of reference:-

MandatoryCommittees
- Audit Committee
- Nomination andRemunerationCommittee
- StakeholdersRelationshipCommittee
- RiskManagementCommittee

Non-mandatoryCommittees
- ShareTransferCommittee

Details of composition of the above Committees, their terms of reference, number of meetings held
during the year, attendance therein and other related aspects are provided in the CorporateGovernance
Report forming part of the Annual Report. There has been no instance where the Board has not
accepted the recommendations of itsCommittees.

(8)
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COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS AND INDIAN ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARRASSEMNT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION,PROHIBITIONANDREDRESSAL)ACT, 2013

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central
Government under Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. In the preparation of the Financial
Statements, the Company has also applied the IndianAccounting Standards (IndAS) specified under
Section 133 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 read with Companies (IndianAccounting Standards) Rules,
2015.

TheCompany has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at theworkplace and has adopted a policy
on prevention, prohibition& redressal of the Sexual Harassment ofWomen atWorkplace (Prevention,
Prohibition&Redressal)Act, 2013 and the rulesmade there under. During the financial year 2022-23,
theCompanyhas not received any complaints of sexual harassment.

Your Directors wish to convey their gratitude to the Company's clients, Bankers, BusinessAssociates,
Shareholders, well wishers and employees, for their valued and timely support and advice to your
companyduring the year& look forward to their continued support.

STEPTWO CORPORATION LIMITED
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Regd. Office:
“Avani Signature”
91A/1, Park Street
7th Floor,
Kolkata – 700 016

Date: 26.05.2023

For and on behalf of the Board

Anuj Agarwal Anup Chattopadhyay
Managing Director Director
DIN: 02984121 DIN: 10042485
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Annexure “I”

PARTICULARS OFMANAGERIALREMUNERATION
Read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial

Personnel) Rules, 2014

any, in the financial year

Requirements ofRule 5(1)

(i) the ratio of the remuneration of each director
to the median remuneration of the employees
of the company for the financial year

(ii) the percentage increase in remuneration of
each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or
Manager, if

Executive Directors Ratio

Non-Executive Non-Independent
Directors Ratio

Non-Executive Independent
Directors Ratio

Sri Bhola Nath Manna 1.33:1
Sri Anuj Agarwal 1.33:1

Smt. Mamta Sharma 0.96:1
Smt. Poonam Bathwal 0.03:1

Sri Sanjay Agarwal 0
Sri Keshav Kumar Saraf 0
Sri Laxmi Kant Jajodia 0
Sri Anup Chattopadhyay 0

Executive Directors Percentage Increase

Non-Executive Non-Independent
Directors

Non-Executive Independent
Directors

Sri Bhola Nath Manna NIL
Sri Anuj Agawal NIL

Smt. Mamta Sharma NIL
Smt. Poonam Bathwal NIL

Sri Sanjay Agarwal NIL
Sri Keshav Kumar Saraf NIL
Sri Laxmi Kant Jajodia NIL
Sri Anup Chattopadhyay NIL

CFO & CS

Percentage Increase

Percentage Increase

Percentage Increase
Sri Basant Kr Agarwal (CFO) NIL
Smt Mamta Sharma (CS) NIL
Smt. Poonam Bathwal (CS) NIL

0

Details



(iii) the percentage increase in the median
remuneration of employees in the financial
year

(iv) the number of permanent employees on the
rolls of company (as on 31stMarch, 2023)

(v) average percentile increase already made
in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial
year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration
and justification thereof and point out if
there are any exceptional circumstances for
increase in themanagerial remuneration

(vi) affirmation that the remuneration is as per
the remuneration policy of the company

0

Average percentile increse in
salary of non-managerial
employees

Average percentile increse in
s a l a r y o f m a n a g e r i a l
employees

0.00

0.00

The increment given to each individual
employee is based on the employees’
potential, experience as also their performance
and contribution to the Company’s progress
over a period of time. The average increase is
also an outcome of the Company’s
performance and its market competitiveness
as against its peer group companies

The Company affirms that the remuneration
paid during the year ended 31st March, 2023
is as per the Remuneration Policy of the
Company.

(12)
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For and on behalf of the Board

Anuj Agarwal
Managing Director
DIN: 02984121

Kolkata, 26th May, 2023
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SECRETARIALAUDIT REPORT
Form No. MR-3

FOR THE FINANCIALYEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

StepTwoCorporationLimited

Auditor’s responsibility

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To theMembers of

L65991WB1994PLC066080
“Avani Signature”
91A/1, Park Street
Kolkata – 700 016

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by M/s Step Two Corporation Limited (hereinafter called “the
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance of the applicable laws and maintenance
of records based on audit. I have conducted the audit in accordance with the applicable Auditing
Standards issued byThe Institute ofCompany Secretaries of India.TheAuditing Standards require that
theAuditor shall comply with statutory and regulatory requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about compliance
with applicable laws andmaintenance of records. .

Based on the verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by theCompany andalso the information providedby theCompany, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion,
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in themanner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other recordsmaintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023, to the extent applicable, according
to the provisions of:

i) TheCompaniesAct, 2013 (theAct) and the rulesmade thereunder;

ii) The SecuritiesContracts (Regulation)Act, 1956 andRulesmade thereunder;



STEPTWO CORPORATION LIMITED

(14)

iii) TheDepositoriesAct, 1996 andRegulations andBye-laws framed thereunder;

Iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made
thereunder;

v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities & Exchange
Boardof IndiaAct, 1992 (“SEBIAct”), to the extent applicable:
a) SEBI (SubstantialAcquisition of Shares andTakeover)Regulations, 2011

b) SEBI (Prohibition of InsiderTrading)Regulations, 1992

c) SEBI (Issue ofCapital andDisclosureRequirements)Regulations, 2009

d) SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidelines, 1999

e) SEBI (Issue and listing ofDebt securities) Regulations, 2008

f) SEBI (Registrars to an Issue andShareTransferAgents)Regulations, 1993

g) TheSEBI (DelistingofEquityShares)Regulations, 2009

h) TheSEBI (Buyback of Securities)Regulations, 1998

vi) Rules, Regulations andGuidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India as are applicable to
Non-Deposit taking Non–Banking Financial Companies with classification as a
'LoanCompany';which are specifically applicable to the Company.

I have also examined compliancewith the applicable clauses of the followings:

a) Secretarial Standards issuedbyThe Institute ofCompany Secretaries of India.

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations And Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and amendments made thereunder (“the Listing
Regulations”)

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations,Guidelines, Standards, etc.mentioned above.
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I further report that

a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carriedout in compliancewith the provisions of theAct.

b) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before themeeting and for
meaningful participation at themeeting.

c) None of the directors in any meeting dissented on any resolution and hence there was no
instance of recording any dissentingmember's view in theminutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company tomonitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period there was no other event/action having major bearing on the
Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc.
referred to above.

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure–1 which forms an
integral part of this report.

COMPANYSECRETARIES

UDIN: F006397E000385325 Proprietor
Place: KOLKATA FCS-6397
Date: 26.05.2023 C.P.No.: 5184

P.R.CertificateNo. 2457/2022

ForN.JHUNJHUNWALA&ASSOCIATES

CSNAVNEETJHUNJHUNWALA
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Annexure – 1

To theMembers of

L65991WB1994PLC066080

My report of even date is to be read alongwith this letter.

1. It is management's responsibility to identify the Laws, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and
Directions which are applicable to the Company depending upon the industry in which it
operates and to comply and maintain those records with same in letter and in spirit. My
responsibility is to express an opinionon those records basedonmyaudit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the
process and practices I followed provide a reasonable basis formyopinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of theCompany.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management's Representation about the compliance of
Laws,Rules, Regulations,Guidelines andDirections and happening events, etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility ofmanagement.My examinationwas limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

6. The SecretarialAudit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

StepTwoCorporationLimited

“Avani Signature”
91A/1, Park Street
Kolkata – 700 016

COMPANYSECRETARIES

Proprietor
Place: KOLKATA FCS-6397
Date: 26.05.2023 C.P.No.: 5184

P.R.CertificateNo. 2457/2022

ForN.JHUNJHUNWALA&ASSOCIATES

CSNAVNEETJHUNJHUNWALA



(17)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONANDANALYSIS

About Step Two Corporation Limited

Industry and Economic Scenario

Pillars of growth and likely risks in FY 2024

Step Two Corporation Limited ('STCL') is a non-deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company
(NBFC-ND) registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). It is engaged in the business of
investments and lending.

The global economy has seen continued shocks and substantial slowdown since 2020. Covid-19
had a significant impact, followed by the Russia-Ukraine conflict which caused a steep rise in
inflation and commodity prices. Since then, the different world economies are striving to fight
inflationary pressures, causing them to continuously hike rates, resulting in a slowdown in growth.
IMF too lowered its growth forecast for 2022 and 2023. In January 2023, the World Economic
Outlook Update projects that global growth slowdown will be more pronounced for Advanced
economies than Emerging and Developing economies. Advanced economies Real GDP growth is
projected at 1.3% in 2023 vis-à-vis 3.9% for Emerging and Developing economies.

Indian economy was resilient in the face of this global turmoil and on the path to recovering to pre
pandemic levels. Projected to be one of the fastest growing economies at 6.5%-7.0% in FY 2023,
India has revived on the back of public spending, private consumption and capital formation. The
first eight months of FY 2023 saw an increase of 63.4% year on year in Central Government's
Capital Expenditure, catalysing private Capex buoyant consumption, release of pent-up demand
saw accelerated growth in not only personal loans but also in the housing market.

The NBFC landscape continues to evolve rapidly adapting to economic challenges, regulatory
changes, and weathering industry volatility. NBFCs play a very important role in the financial
sector as evident in the increase in industry AUM from Rs.3.6 Lakhs Crores in March 2008 to
Rs.27 Lakhs Crores in March 2022, which is equivalent to 12.3% of India's GDP. NBFCs
compliment banks in attaining India's financial inclusion goals by supporting large sections of
MSMEs and retail borrowers even in smaller tier 2 and 3 towns. Improving macro-economic
fundamentals will continue to drive the NBFC space given the visible improvement in asset quality
and balance sheet strength post pandemic. While competition from Banks continue in the
traditional segments of home loans and new vehicle finance, there is substantial growth in NBFCs
in other non-traditional segments like MSMEs, Personal Loans etc. Digital thrust, use of
technology, deep expertise, partnerships, and recovery in asset quality have all led to stronger
fundamentals. FY 2024 expects to see NBFCs AUM grow at 13%-14%.

STEPTWO CORPORATION LIMITED
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Financial Performance

Key financial ratio - Significant changes and explanations

Balance Sheet

Profit and loss statement

- Total net fixed assets for FY2022-23 stood at Rs. 0.54 lacs compared to Rs.0.65 lacs in
FY2021-22

- Net worth stood at Rs. 594.45 lacs as on 31st March, 2023 compared to Rs. 542.65 lacs
as on 31st March, 2023, an increase of 9.55%.

- Revenues from operations stood at Rs. 86.35 lacs in FY2022-23 compared to Rs. 39.09
lacs in FY2021-22

- EBITDA decreased to Rs. 67.40 lacs in FY2022-23 compared to Rs. 19.81 lacs in
FY2021-22

- Profit after tax was witnessed at Rs. 49.55 lacs in FY2022-23 compared to Rs.14.33 lacs
in FY2021-22

- Depreciation and amortisation stood at Rs. 0.11 lacs in FY2022-23 compared to Rs. 0.11
lacs in FY2021-22

Debtors Turnover (Days) - - -
Inventory Turnover - - -
Interest Coverage Ratio - - -
Current Ratio (with
short term borrowings) 41.59 69.23 -40%
Debt Equity Ratio NIL NIL NIL
Operating Profit Margin (%) 71% 42% 69%
(EBIT Margin)
Net Profit Margin (%) / PAT 55% 30% 81%
Return on Net Worth/ 8% 3% 216%
Average Equity
EBITDAMargin 71% 42% 69%
Earnings per share (Rs.) 1.17 0.34 246%
Fixed Asset Turnover Ratio 151.51 66.83 127%
Return on Average 11% 4% 196%
capital employed

* Figures for Debtors Turnover (Days), Inventory Turnover and Interest Coverage Ratio have not
been stated since the Company had Nil Debtors, Inventory and Interest Expense.

Ratio FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 Changes

STEPTWO CORPORATION LIMITED



Risk Management

Evolving Regulatory Landscape

Opportunities and Threats

Internal control system and their adequacy

The Company aims to operate within an effective risk management framework to actively manage
all the material risks faced by the organization and make it resilient to shocks in a rapidly changing
environment. It aims to establish consistent approach in management of risks and strives to reach
the efficient frontier of risk and return for the organization and its shareholders.

Broad categories of risk faced by the Company are credit, liquidity and interest rate risk. The risk
management policies are well defined for various risk categories supplemented by periodic
monitoring through the Board.

Over the past few years, financial services as a sector has come under increased scrutiny and
therefore, greater regulatory supervision. This is especially true for NBFCs, as over the years, the
sector has undergone considerable evolution in terms of size, complexity and interconnectedness
within the financial sector. With a view to bridge the regulatory gaps between the Banks and
NBFCs, NBFCs are now increasingly being subject to regulations and guidelines at par with
banks.

Non-Banking Financial Companies (“NBFCs”) remain one of the most important pillars for
ushering financial inclusion in India, reaching out to a hitherto under/unserved populace and in the
process leading to “formalization” of the credit demand.

Last two years were challenging on account of the pandemic during which both business and
collections were severely impacted. However, from Q2 FY 2022-23, credit growth has picked up
significantly due to receding impact of COVID shutdowns, the pent-up demand in the economy
and an uptick in multiple economic indicators.

However, there's room for optimism – receding pandemic impact along with large vaccinated
population, rising private investments, higher consumption levels and thrust on capital expenditure
in Union Budget 2023 shall in tandem lead to a higher growth trajectory for the economy. This
shall also translate into a better performance vis-à-vis the year gone by for most of the leading
financial services institutions including NBFCs.

The Company has an effective internal control system, commensurate with its size and nature to
ensure smooth business operation, including assurance of recording all the transaction details,
ensuring regulatory compliance and protecting the Company assets from any kind of loss or
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misus . It evaluates the adequacy of all internal controls and processes, and ensures strict
adherence to clearly laid down processes and procedures as well as to the prescribed regulatory
and legal framework. The Company has further strengthened its internal audit function by
investing in domain specialists to increase effectiveness of controls. The Audit Committee of the
Board of Directors reviews the internal audit reports and the adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal controls.

STCL fulfils norms and standards laid down by the RBI relating to the recognition and
provisioning of non-performing assets, capital adequacy, statutory liquidity ratio, etc.

The Company continues to lay emphasis on people, its most valuable resource. In an increasingly
competitive market for human resources, it seriously focuses on attracting and retaining the right
talent. It provides equal opportunity to employees to deliver results.

Certain statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's
objectives, predictions may be “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of applicable
laws and regulations. Actual results may vary significantly from the forward looking statements
contained in this document due to various risks and uncertainties.

Fulfilment of the RBI's norms and standards

Development in human resources

Conclusion

e
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STEPTWO CORPORATION LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1.

Our corporate governance is a reflection of our value system, encompassing our culture, policies,
and relationships with our stakeholders. Integrity and transparency are key to our corporate
governance practices and performance, and ensure that we gain and retain the trust of our
stakeholders at all times.

Corporate governance is an ethically-driven business process that is committed to values aimed at
enhancing an organization's capacity to create wealth. This is ensured by taking ethical business
decisions and conducting business with a firm commitment to values, while meeting stakeholders'
expectations. At Step Two Corporation Limited (STCL), it is imperative that our Company affairs
are managed in a fair and transparent manner. This is vital to gain and retain the trust of our
stakeholders.

We are committed to defining, following and practicing the highest level of corporate governance
across all our business functions.
Our corporate governance is a statement of the values we stand by as we conduct our business and
engage with our stakeholders.

In keeping with the commitment of the Management to the principle of integrity and transparency
in business operations for good corporate governance, the Company's policy is to have an
appropriate blend of executive and independent directors to maintain the independence of the
Board and to separate the Board functions of governance and management.

All the members of the Board are eminent persons with considerable expertise and experience in
general management spanning the banking, finance, accounts and audit and information
technology sectors. The Company is immensely benefited by the range of experience and skills
that the Directors bring to the Board.

As on 31st March, 2023, the Board comprises One Executive Director and Three Non-Executive
Directors. The executive Director is Mr.Anuj Agarwal. Independent Non-executive Directors are
Mr.Laxmi Kant Jajodia and Mr.Anup Chattopadhyay, professional non-executive Director is
Ms.Poonam Bathwal.

Ms.Poonam Bathwal is also the Secretary and compliance officer of the Company.

Mr.Basant Kumar Agarwal is the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company. The composition
of the Board is in conformity with the listing requirements.

BOARD OFDIRECTORSAND KMP
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The Board reviews and approves strategy and oversees the actions and results of management to
ensure that the long term objectives of enhancing stakeholder value are met.

There were no materially relevant pecuniary relationships or transactions of the Non-Executive
Directors vis-à-vis the Company during the year.

The Board meets at least once a quarter to review the quarterly results and other items on the
agenda. Additional meetings are held whenever necessary. The gap between any two meetings is
less than four months. The Board of Directors formulates the business and operational policies and
decides on strategic issues concerning the Company.
During the FY 2022-2023, the Board met 8 times on: 12th May,2022, 27th May, 2022, 11th
August, 2022, 11th November, 2022, 16th January, 2023, 25th January2023, 8th February, 2023
and 15th March, 2023
The composition of the Board is in conformity with the listing regulations. The composition of the
Board, number of Board Meetings held, attendance of the Directors at the Board Meetings and last
Annual General Meeting and the number of Directorship and Chairmanship/ Membership of
Committees in other Companies in respect of each Director as on March 31, 2023 is given here-in
below:

Name of Director Type Executive/ Number of Number of Whether
Non-executive meetings other attended

attended Directorships* last AGM

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal Independent Non-executive 5 Nil Yes
(DIN- 00571217)
Mr. Keshav Kumar Saraf Independent Non-executive 7 1 Yes
(DIN- 00595594)
Mr. Bhola Nath Manna Non-Independent Executive 5 Nil Yes
(DIN- 03345433)
Ms. Mamta Sharma Professional Non-executive 8 Nil Yes
(DIN- 07080870)
Mr. Anuj Agarwal Promoter Executive 3 Nil Yes
(DIN- 02984121)
Mr.Laxmi Kant Jajodia Independent Non-executive 3 Nil Yes
(DIN- 00570216)
Mr.Anup Chattopadhyay Independent Non-executive 0 Nil Yes
(DIN- 10042485)
Ms. Poonam Bathwal Professional Non-executive 0 Nil Yes
(DIN- 10045592)

* Directorship held in Public Limited Company.

2. BOARD MEETINGS
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Directorships Committee Positions in
Listed & Unlisted public

Name of Director In listed In unlisted In private As Chairman As Member
companies public limited

companies companies
Mr. Sanjay Agarwal 1 - - 4 -
(DIN- 00571217)

Mr. Keshav Kumar Saraf 1 1 - - 6
(DIN- 00595594)

Mr. Bhola Nath Manna 1 - - - 4
(DIN- 03345433)

Ms. Mamta Sharma 1 - - - 7
(DIN- 07080870)

Mr. Anuj Agarwal 1 - - - 3
(DIN- 02984121)

Mr.Laxmi Kant Jajodia 1 1 - - 3
(DIN- 00570216)

Mr.Anup Chattopadhyay 1 - - -
(DIN- 10042485)

Ms. Poonam Bathwal 1 - - - –
(DIN- 10045592)

Note: For the purpose of considering the limit of the committees on which a director can serve, all
public limited companies, whether listed or not, have been included and all other companies
including private limited companies, foreign companies and companies registered under section 8
of the Companies Act, 2013/section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956 have been excluded. Only
audit committee and stakeholders relationship committee are considered for the purpose of
reckoning committee positions.

Limited companies

-
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Meeting of Independent Directors:

Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se

3.

4.

Section 149(8) of the Act read with Schedule IV of the Act requires the Independent Directors of
the Company to hold at least one meeting in a year, without the attendance of non-independent
directors and members of the management. The Independent Directors of the Company met on
March 27, 2023, pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations.

None of the Directors of the Company are related inter-se.

Mr.Laxmi Kant Jajodia was appointed as an additional director, independent and non-executive, on
the Board of the Company w.e.f.16.01.2023.

Mr.Anuj Agarwal was appointed as an additional director, promoter and executive, on the Board of
the Company w.e.f.16.01.2023.

Mr.Bhola Nath Manna resigned from the Board w.e.f.16.01.2023.

Mr.Sanjay Agarwal resigned from the Board w.e.f.16.01.2023.

Mr.Anup Chattopadhyay was appointed as an additional director, independent and non-executive,
on the Board of the Company w.e.f.15.03.2023.

Ms.Poonam Bathwal was appointed as an additional director, professional and non-executive, on
the Board of the Company w.e.f.15.03.2023.

Ms.Mamta Sharma resigned from the Board w.e.f.15.03.2023.

Mr.Keshav Kumar Saraf resigned from the Board w.e.f.15.03.2023.

Mr.Anuj Agarwal was also appointed as the Managing Director of the Company w.e.f.25.01.2023.

Ms. Poonam Bathwal, Director of the Company, retires by rotation and being eligible offers herself
for re-appointment. Her brief particulars are as under:

Ms. Poonam Bathwal (33 years) possesses immense knowledge in the fields of Investment,
Banking and retail financing. Her rich experience in the corporate world is an asset for the
Company and would surely go a long way in terms of value addition for the Company. She is a
member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

She does not hold directorship in any public limited company apart from Step Two Corporation
Ltd.

She is not a director in any Private Limited Company.

The Audit Committee reviews the financial accounting policies, adequacy of internal control
systems and systems audit and interacts with the statutory auditors and internal auditors. Besides,

INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS' RE-APPOINTMENT / APPOINTMENT

AUDIT COMMITTEE
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the Committee reviews the audit plans, interim and annual financial results, management discussion
and analysis of financial condition and results of operations, related party transactions, observations
of the management and internal / external auditors on internal control and follow-up reports of the
management.

The Board reviews the working of the Committee from time to time to bring about greater
effectiveness in order to comply with the various requirements under the Companies Act, 2013, the
Listing Regulations and the NBFC Regulations.

As on 31st March, 2023, the Audit Committee comprised One Promoter Executive Director and
Three Non-Executive Directors, two of whom are Independent. The Committee comprises Mr.Anuj
Agarwal, Mr.Laxmi Kant Jajodia, Mr.Anup Chattopadhyay and Ms.Poonam Bathwal The
Committee is chaired by Mr.Anup Chattopadhyay Independent Non executive Director. All
members of the Audit Committee have accounting and financial management expertise.

During the year, the Committee met 4 times on: 27th May, 2022, 11th August, 2022, 11th
November, 2022 and 8th February, 2023

Composition of the Committee and attendance of the members are as follows:

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal 3

Mr. Keshav Kumar Saraf 4

Mr. Bhola Nath Manna 3

Ms. Mamta Sharma 4

Mr. Anuj Agarwal 1

Mr. Laxmikant Jajodia 1

Mr. Anup Chattopadhyay 0

Ms. Poonam Bathwal 0

As on 31st March, 2023, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of STCL consists of One
Executive Director and Two Non-Executive Independent Directors. The constitution and
composition of the Committee is in accordance with the provisions of the Listing Regulations. The
Company Secretary acts as the Secretary and has been appointed as the Compliance Officer of the
Committee.

.
,

Name of the Director No. of Meetings Attended

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE5.
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Name of the Director No. of Meeting Attended

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

POLICIES, CODE OF CONDUCTAND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

6. NOMINATION &

Name of the Director

7.

Code of Conduct:

Vigil Mechanism Framework/Whistle Blower Mechanism:

Mr. Anuj Agarwal Nil

Mr. Laxmikant Jajodia Nil

Mr. Anup Chattopadhyay Nil

No investor compliant was received during the year and none was pending unresolved as on 31st
March, 2023..

As on 31st March, 2023, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of STCL consists of One
Executive Director and Two Non-Executive Independent Directors. The constitution and
composition of the Committee is in accordance with the provisions of the Listing Regulations. The
Company Secretary acts as the Secretary and has been appointed as the Compliance Officer of the
Committee.

Mr. Anuj Agarwal

Mr. Laxmi Kant Jajodia

Mr. Anup Chattopadhyay

The Committee evaluates compensation and benefits for Executive Directors.

The Listing Regulations require listed companies to lay down a code of conduct for directors and
senior management, incorporating duties of directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, the Company has a Board approved code of conduct for all Board members and
Senior Management of the Company. The said code has been placed on the Company's website
https://www.steptwo.in.

All the Board members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the
code for the year ended 31 March 2022. A declaration to this effect signed by the Whole time
Director is given elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Company has a Board
approved whistle blower policy/vigil mechanism to enable directors and employees to report to the
Management their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the
Company's code of conduct or ethics policy.
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This mechanism provides safeguards against victimisation of directors/employees who avail of the
mechanism and provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional
cases.

The whistle blower policy/vigil mechanism has been appropriately communicated to the
employees within the organisation and has been put on the Company's website
https://www.steptwo.in.

As on March 31, 2023, no complaint has been received by the Company from any directors or
employees of the Company with respect to any wrongdoings that may have an adverse impact on
the Company's image or financials of the Company.

The CEO and CFO have certified to the Board with regard to the financial statements and other
matters as required under the Listing Regulations.

The Company has obtained a certificate from its statutory auditors regarding compliance with the
provisions relating to corporate governance laid down in the Listing Regulations.

This certificate is annexed to the Directors' Report.

Pursuant to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company has a Board
approved code of conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by insiders ('code of conduct')
and a Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive
Information ('code of fair disclosure'). The code of conduct and code of fair disclosure framed by
the Company have helped in ensuring compliance with the requirements.

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations.

The Company confirms that its financial statements are with unmodified audit opinion.

The Company has appointed separate persons to the post of Whole-time Director, Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary.

The internal auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 no fraud was reported by auditors of the
Company to the Audit Committee during FY 2022-23..

CEO/CFO certification

Auditors' certificate on corporate governance

Compliances regarding insider trading

Compliance of mandatory requirements under the Listing Regulations

Modified opinion in the audit report

Separate posts of Whole-time Director/CFO/Secretary

Reporting of internal auditor
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ACash Flow Statement for FY 2022-23 is attached to the Balance Sheet.

The Company has a policy on prevention of sexual harassment at workplace. There was no case of
sexual harassment reported during FY 2022-23.

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are interested by
name and amount: During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Company has not provided any loans
and/or advances to firms/ companies in which Directors are interested.

Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities: Since the Company does
not deal in any commodities, the same has been not been discussed in this Report.

Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary on qualification of the Board: The Company has
obtained a certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice that none of the Directors on the
Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or to continue as
Directors of any company by SEBI or Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory
authorities. The certificate is annexed separately to this Report.

The Company has formulated an Archival Policy for ensuring compliance with the provisions
under Regulation 30(8) of the Regulations for protection, maintenance and archival of the Events
or Information disclosed to the stock exchange(s) which are also hosted on its website.

The Board of Directors of the company have laid down a code of conduct for all Board members
and Senior Management personnel of the Company in compliance with Regulation 17(5) of The
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

The Company has a Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors in compliance with
Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Company has in place a Policy on Determination of Materiality of Event or Information in
pursuance of the requirements of Regulation 30 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted a policy on materiality of Related Party
Transactions and dealing with Related Party Transactions. The policy is in line with requirement
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and The
Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has in place a Risk Management Policy in compliance with Section 134 (3) (n) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17(9)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 which requires the Company to develop and implement a Risk
Management Policy / Plan and to lay down risk assessment and minimisation procedures.
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Secretarial standards of ICSI

8.

Details of special resolution(s) passed at the last three years' annual general meetings
(AGM) and postal ballot:

I. Special resolutions passed at the previous three annual general meetings:

II. No special resolution was passed through postal ballot during FY 2022-2023.

III. No special resolution is proposed to be passed through postal ballot at this annual
general meeting.

Pursuant to the approval from the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India (ICSI) has, on 14 June 2018, revised the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of
the Board of Directors (SS–1) and General Meetings (SS–2) effective from 1 October 2018.

The Company is compliant with the same.

Time and location of last three Annual General Meetings

Year Date Time Location

2020 29.12.2020 10:00 A.M. 21, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 5th Floor, Suite No.507,
Kolkata - 700 001

2021 21.09.2021 10:00 A.M. 21, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 5th Floor, Suite No.507,
Kolkata - 700 001

2022 28.09.2022 10:00 A.M. 21, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 5th Floor, Suite No.507,
Kolkata - 700 001

At the 26th AGM held on 29 December, 2020, no special resolution was passed.

At the 27th AGM held on 21 September, 2021, no special resolution was passed.

At the 28th AGM held on 28 September, 2022, no special resolution was passed.

GENERAL BODYMEETINGS
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9.

10.

11

A.

B.

DISCLOSURE

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

A summary statement of transactions with related parties was placed periodically before the audit
committee during the year. During the year under review there were no materially significant
related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at
large. Suitable disclosures have been made in the financial statements, together with the
management's explanation in the event of any treatment being different from that prescribed in
accounting standards.

Details of non-compliance by the company, penalties, strictures imposed on the company by Stock
Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the
last Three years: None.

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment: In the preparation of financial statements, the company has
followed the treatment as prescribed in the Accounting Standards.

Risk Management: The company has a defined Risk Management framework. The company has
laid down procedures to inform the Board members about the risk assessment and minimization
procedures.

Proceeds from public issues, rights issues, preferential issues etc.: There were no proceeds from
public issues, rights issues, preferential issues etc. during the financial year.

The Company publishes quarterly, half-yearly and annual results in Financial Express and Arthik
Lipi which are national and local dailies. The Company results and official news releases are
displayed on the Company's website http://www.steptwo.in. The Company also makes
presentations to international and national institutional investors and analysts, which are also put
up on its website.

Annual General Meeting

Date 18th September, 2023

Time - 10:00 A.M

Venue- “Avani Signature” 91A/1, Park Street, Kolkata - 700 016

Financial Calender 1st April to 31st March Provisional : Will be published during

Result for Quarter ending June 30, 2023 : On or before 14th August, 2023

Result for Quarter ending September 30, 2023 : On or before 14th November, 2023

Result for Quarter ending December 31, 2023 : On or before 14th February, 2024

Result for Year ending March 31, 2024 : On or before 30th May, 2024
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C.B

D.

E.

F. ISIN Number: INE623D01015

G. Depository Connectivity: NSDL and CDSL

H.

ook Closure

Dividend

Listing at Stock Exchange

STOCKMARKET DATA

The Register of members and Share Transfer Book will remain closed from 12th day of September,
2023 to 18th day of September, 2023 (both days inclusive) on account of Annual General Meeting.

No dividend is recommended for the year.

(i) The Calcutta Stock Exchange Association Ltd. (Stock Code 29182)

(ii) The Stock Exchange, Mumbai (Stock Code 531509)

The Company has paid the Listing Fees for the year 2022-2023 to all stock exchanges.

Annual Custody/Issuer fee for the Financial Year(s) 2022-23 and 2023-24 has been paid to
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(CDSL).

Monthly highs and lows of Step Two Corporation Ltd. share price (Rs.) during 2022-2023.

High Low

April'2022 9.35 6.78 57060

May'2022 20.11 9.33 55566

June'2022 25.35 16.30 53019

July'2022 20.90 16.25 57570

Aug'2022 23.45 17.20 59537

Sep'2022 22.60 18.05 57427

Oct'2022 21.95 15.30 60746

Nov'2022 20.30 16.10 63099

Dec'2022 20.70 15.50 60840

Jan'2023 21.45 17.15 59550

Feb'2023 19.90 17.15 58962

Mar'2023 19.42 14.81 58991

Month BSE Closing BSE Sensex
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12.

Share Transfer System

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

REGISTRAR & TRANSFERAGENTS

Name Address

Niche Technologies (P) Ltd. 3A, Auckland Place, 7th Floor,

(For Physical and Demat Shares) Room No. 7A& 7 B, Kolkata - 700017

As per Regulation 40(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015, as amended, Physical transfer of shares has been dispensed with and securities
of listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form w.e.f. 1st April, 2019. Effective
from 24th January, 2022, SEBI has mandated for Listed Companies to issue shares in demat form
only, after processing the requests in prescribed Form ISR-4 received for issue of duplicate
certificate, transmission, transposition, renewal/ exchange of share certificate, endorsement, sub-
division/ splitting of certificate, consolidation of certificates, claim from Unclaimed Suspense
Account, etc. The RTA will after processing such requests issue a Letter of Confirmation to the
concerned shareholder for submission to DP within 120 days from the date of issue of Letter of
Confirmation for dematerialistion of shares. In case shareholder fails to submit the demat request
within the aforesaid period, the RTA shall credit the shares to Suspense Escrow Demat Account of
the Company. Form ISR-4 is available on the website of the Company at: www.steptwo.in

The Board has delegated the authority for approving transfer, transmission, etc. of the Company's
securities to its Share Transfer Committee. The Committee meets as and when required to, inter
alia, consider the issue of duplicate share certificates (letter of confirmation with effect from 24th
January, 2022) and attend to Shareholders' grievances, etc. A summary of the transfer,
transmissions, dematerialisation, rematerialisation, etc. is placed before the Committee at every
meeting. There are no legal cases relating to transfer/ transmission of shares.

As required under Regulation 40(9) of the Listing Regulations, the Company had obtained for the
year under review a certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice, confirming due compliance
of share transfer formalities and also filed a copy of the said certificate with the stock exchanges.

As stipulated under Regulation 76 of SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018, as
amended, a Company Secretary in Practice carries out the Share Capital Audit to reconcile the
total admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital. This audit is
carried out in every quarter and the report thereon is submitted to stock exchanges where the
Company's shares are listed and is also placed before the Board of Directors. No discrepancies
were noticed during these audits.
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13.

14.
No. of Equity Shares No. of Share % of Shares No. of Shares % of Shares

Totals 1153 100.000 42,47,300 100.000

15.

16.

17. BREAK-UPOF SHARES IN PHYSICALAND DEMAT SEGMENT (As on 31.03.2023)

Segment No. of % to total No. of Shares held % to total
Shareholders Shareholders

Total 1211 100.00 4247300 100.00

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGAS ON 31.03.2023

Held holders holders held holding

SHAREHOLDING PATTERNAS ON 31.03.2023
Category No. of Share held % of Share holding

DEMATERLIZATION OF SHARES

Ms. Poonam Bathwal is presently acting as the compliance officer in accordance with the
provisions of the Listing Regulations. Her contact details are as under:

Address:” Avani Signature”, 91A/1, Park Street, 7th Floor, Kolkata – 700016

Tel No.: 9836450055

E-mail : admin@steptwo.in

1 to 500 856 74.2411 1,03,775 2.4433
501 to 1000 147 12.7493 1,11,747 2.6310
1001 to 5000 95 8.2394 2,27,586 5.3584
5001 to 10000 19 1.6479 1,43,387 3.3760
10001 to 50000 32 2.7754 7,15,775 16.8525
50001 to 100000 2 0.1735 1,14,510 2.6961
100001 and above 2 0.1735 28,30,520 66.6428

Indian Promoters 2830520 66.64
Indian Public including corporate bodies 1416780 33.36

4247300 100.00

3794694 shares have been dematerialized up to 31.03.2023 which is 89.34% percent of the total
shares of the Company.

Physical 370 30.55 452606 10.66
Demat 841 69.45 3794694 89.34
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Transfer of Unclaimed dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

Unclaimed Shares

Transfer of shares in respect of which dividend remained unclaimed/ unpaid for seven
consecutive years or more

Credit Ratings

Foreign currency exposure and its hedging

18.

19.

In terms of the provisions of Sections 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Investor
Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016,
dividends which remain unpaid/ unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of transfer to
the unpaid dividend account have to be statutorily transferred by the Company to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) administered by the Central Government. There is no
amount of unclaimed dividend with the Company.

In accordance with the requirement of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Part F of the Listing
Regulations, unclaimed shares to be transferred to the suspense account. There are no such
unclaimed shares with the Company.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Investor
Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016
('IEPF Rules') and amendments made thereto, the Equity Shares, in respect of which dividend has
not been claimed or encashed by the Members for seven or more consecutive years, are liable to
be transferred by the Company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund ('IEPF'). Upon
transfer of such shares, all benefits, viz. bonus, dividend etc., if any, accruing on such shares shall
also be credited to the IEPF and the voting rights on such shares shall remain frozen till the
rightful owner claims the shares. There is no such case with the Company.

The Company has noy obtained any credit rating.

The Company has no foreign exchange exposure in its books

Not applicable as the Company has not issued any such instruments.

REGISTERED OFFICE:
Step Two Corporation Limited
“Avani Signature”,
91A/1, Park Street, 7th Floor,
Kolkata – 700016

.

OUTSTANDING GDRs/ADRs/WARRANTS OR ANY CONVERTIBLE
INSTRUMENTS, CONVERSION DATEAND LIKELY IMPACT ON EQUITY

ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

TO
THE MEMBERS OF
STEP TWO CORPORATION LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Step Two
Corporation Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2023, as stipulated in regulations 17, 17A, 18,
19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 24A, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub–regulation (2) of regulation 46
and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (collectively referred to as "SEBI
Listing Regulations, 2015").

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the Company's
Management. Our examination was carried out in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Certification of Corporate Governance, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring
the compliance of the conditions of corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression
of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we
certify that the Company has complied to the extent applicable with the conditions of corporate
governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

Place : Kolkata (Amit Tulsyan)

Date : The 26th day of May, 2023 (Partner)

Membership Number: 064210

For B.P. Agarwal &Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 316155E

STEPTWO CORPORATION LIMITED
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CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

I, Basant Kumar Agarwal, Chief Financial Officer, certify to the Board that:

a) I have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended on 31st
March' 2023 and that to the best of my knowledge and belief :

i. These statement do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material
fact or contain statements that might be misleading ;

ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and
comply with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b) To the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during
the year ended 31st March'2023 are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company's code of
conduct.

c) I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that I have
evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the company and I have
disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of
internal controls, if any, of which I am aware and the steps they have taken or propose to
take to rectify these deficiencies.

d) I have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee

i. Significant changes in internal control during the year;

ii. Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements and

iii. Instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement
therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the
company's internal control system.

For Step Two Corporation Limited

Place : Kolkata

Date : The 26th day of May, 2023 Chief Financial Officer

Basant KumarAgarwal

STEPTWO CORPORATION LIMITED



DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE OF
THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT

To
The Members of
Step Two Corporation Limited

I, Anuj Agarwal, Managing Director of the Company declare that all Board Members and Senior
Management of the Company have affirmed compliancewith the Code ofConduct for the year ended
31stMarch, 2023.

Place : Kolkata

Managing Director
Anuj AgarwalDate26.05.2023
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INDEPENDENTAUDITOR’S REPORT

To

The Members of

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of M/S. STEP TWO
CORPORATION LTD, which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31st March 2023, the Statement of
Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2023 its profit and Cash Flow for the
year on that date.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with those
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

STEPTWO CORPORATION LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

Basis for Opinion
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Key Audit Matters

Information other than the financial statements and Auditor's report there on

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
of our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statement as a whole, and informing our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The Company's board of directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexure to
Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor's report there on.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and in doing so, consider whether the other information materially inconsistent with
the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
and cash flow of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provision of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation
and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Management's and Board of Directors' responsibility for the Financial Statements
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
company of to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting
process.

Our objective are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statement as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economics decision of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
included in Annexure A. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable

2. (A) As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss(including other comprehensive
income) and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account;

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statement

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
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d. in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act;

e. on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March 20232 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in 'Annexure C'.

g.With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position;

ii. the Company did not have any long term contract including derivatives
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. there was no amount which is required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. i) the management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

ii) the management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the company from any persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused them to believe
that the representations under clause iv(i) and iv(ii) contain any material
misstatement.

v. the company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. As such,
provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(B) With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section
197(16) :

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the remuneration
paid by the companies to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions
of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to directors is not in excess of the limit laid
down in Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details
under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

for
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 316155E

Place : Kolkata
Date : 26.05.2023 Partner

Membership No. 064210
UDIN: 23064210BGYOSM1412

B. P. AGARWAL&ASSOCIATES

(Amit Tulsyan)
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Annexure ‘A’ Responsibilities for Audit of Financial Statement

a.. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting amaterial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

ii Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

iii Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosuresmade bymanagement.

iv Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether amaterial uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditionsmay cause theCompany to cease to continue as a going concern.

v Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in amanner that achieves fair presentation.

b. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control thatwe identify during our audit.

c.. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and othermatters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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d. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters thatwere ofmost significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

For
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 316155E

Place : Kolkata
Date : 26.05.2023 Partner

Membership No. 064210
UDIN: 23064210BGYOSM1412

B.P.AGARWAL&ASSOCIATES

(Amit Tulsyan)
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ANNEXURE ‘B’TO THE INDEPENDENTAUDITORS' REPORT

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the Company on
the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022, we report that:

i. a. A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment.

B) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not
have any Intangible Assets. As such, the provisions of this clause are not
applicable.

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Property, Plant and
equipments have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals.
No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

c. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company does not hold
any immoveable property. As such, the provisions of this clause are not applicable.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property,
plant and equipment (including Right-of-use assets) or Intangible assets or both during
the year.

e. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

ii. a. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have
any Inventory. As such, the provisions of this clause are not applicable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the
basis of security of current assets.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments,
provided guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the
year. The company has granted loans during the year, details of the loan is stated in sub-
clause (a) below.

a. The Company being a Non-Banking Financial Institute (NBFC) registered under
Provisions of RBI Act, 1934, its principal business is to give loans. As such, the
provisions of clause 3(iii)(a) of the order is not applicable to it.
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b. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of the
loans given are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

c. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, there is no
stipulation of repayment of principal and payment of interest as the loans are repayable
on demand. So, we are unable to comment on the regularity of repayment.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than
ninety days in respect of loans given.

e. The Company being a Non-Banking Financial Institute (NBFC) registered under
Provisions of RBI Act, 1934, its principal business is to give loans. As such, the
provisions of clause 3(iii)(e) of the order is not applicable to it.

f. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has given loans that are
repayable on demand.

Aggregate amount of Rs. 85,612 Rs. NIL Rs. Nil
Loans/Advances in the nature of
Loans - Repayable on Demand

Percentage of loans/advances in 100% 0 0
the nature of Loans to the total Loans

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee
or security as specified under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company has
not made any investments, provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section 186
of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, since its principal business is to give loans, provisions
of Section 186 in respect of Loans is not applicable to the company and so not commented
upon.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
for the products manufactured by it (and/ or services provided by it). Accordingly, clause
3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

vii a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

Particulars All Parties Promoters Related Party

.
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examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax
('GST'), Provident fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs,
Cess and other material statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities. There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of GST,
Provident fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and
other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of GST,
Provident fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of
Customs, Value added tax, Cess or other statutory dues which have not been deposited
by the Company on account of disputes.

viii According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed
any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax
assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

ix. a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company does not have any loans or
borrowings. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a
wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government
authority.

c. According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is
not applicable.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds have been
raised on short-term basis by the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is
not applicable.

e. According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

f. According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by
us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.
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x. a. According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by
us, the Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during
the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi. a. Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality
outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section
(12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government.

c. According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle-blower
complaints were received during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xi)(c) is not applicable.

xii According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

xiv. a. According to the information given to us, the company has an internal audit system that
commensurate with the size and nature of the organization.

b. The reports of the internal auditors for the period under audit have been considered by us.

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its
directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable
to the Company.

xvi a. The Company is registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
vide registration number 05.02614 dated 04.06.1998.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without obtaining a
valid CoR from the Reserve Bank of India as per Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
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c. The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

d. According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit,
the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are
not applicable.

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

xix.. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not required to
undertake any Corporate Social Responsibility activities as per section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(a) and clause 3(xx)(b) are not applicable.

xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the order is not applicable in respect of audit of
standalone financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has
been included in the report.

For
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 316155E

Place : Kolkata
Date : 26.05.2023 Partner

Membership No. 064210
UDIN: 23064210BGYOSM1412

xviii.

B. P. AGARWAL&ASSOCIATES

(Amit Tulsyan)



(50)

STEPTWO CORPORATION LIMITED

ANNEXURE 'C’TO THE INDEPENDENTAUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditors' Responsibility

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Step Two Corporation
Ltd. (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”), to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Opinion

B. P. AGARWAL&ASSOCIATES

(Amit Tulsyan)

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note

For
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 316155E

Place : Kolkata
Date : 26..05.2023 Partner

Membership No. 064210
UDIN: 23064210BGYOSM1412
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BALANCE SHEETASAT 31ST MARCH, 2023
(Amount in Rs.‘00)

B. P. AGARWAL&ASSOCIATES

(AMIT TULSYAN)

I

NON FINANCIALASSETS

LIABILITIES&
LIABILITIES
FINANCIALLIABILITIES

NON FINANCIALLIABILITIES

EQUITY

ASSETS
FINANCIALASSETS

II EQUITY

Cash & Cash Equivalents 4 27,372 32,450
Bank balance 5 — 42,500
other than cash & cash equivalent

Receivables
(I) Trade Receivables 6 81,661 —

Provisions 15 214 1,175

Loans 7 85,612 4,69,813
Other Financial Assets 8 4,01,560 1,560

Current Tax Assets (Net) 9 8,889 4,361
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 10 38 41
Property, Plant & Equipment
& Intangible Assets 11 541 652

Other Non-Financial Assets 12 3,545 401
Total 6,09,218 5,51,778

Other Financial Liabilities 13 295 655

Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 14 14,255 7,299

Equity Share Capital 16 4,59,686 4,59,686
Other Equity 17 1,34,767 82,963

Total 6,09,218 5,51,778
General Information & Significant
Accounting policies

1 - 3

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts
As per our Report of even date
For,
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 316155E

Partner
Membership No. 064210
Date : 26.05.2023
Place: Kolkata
UDIN: 23064210BGYOSM1412

As on
31.03.2023Note No.

For & on Behalf of the Board

Director

Anuj Agarwal (DIN-02984121)
(DIN-10042485)

Sd/-
Anup Chattopadhyay

As on
31.03.2022
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Poonam Bathwal
Sd/-

Company Secretary
Basant KumarAgarwal

Sd/-
C.F.O.
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023
(Amount in Rs.‘00)

I
Interest Income 18 43,683 39,095
Net Gain on Fair Value Changes 19 42,669

III Total Income (I+II) 90,378 47,235
IV

Finance Cost 21 3,478
Employee Benefit Expenses 22 15,225 14,700
Depreciation andAmortization 23 110 110
Other Expenses 24 7,753 12,722

26,566 27,532
V Profit/(Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary

items and taxes (III-IV) 63,811 19,703
VI Exceptional Items — —
VII Profit/(Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary items and taxes (V-VI) 63,811 19,703
VIII Extraordinary Items — —

IX Profit/(Loss) before tax (VII-VIII) 63,811 19,703
X Tax Expenses:

(1) Current Tax 25 (14,255)
(2) Deferred Tax 25 (3) (39)
(3) Income Tax for earlier year 25 (38)

XI Profit/(Loss) for the period from Continuing
Operations (VII-VIII) 49,553

XII Profit/(Loss) from Discontinuing Operations — —
XIII Tax Expense of discontinuing operation — —
XIV Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operations

(after tax) (XII-XIII) — —

XV Profit/(Loss) for the period (XI+XIV) 49,553 14,326
XVI Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Income Tax relating to items that will not be

reclassfied to profit or loss

Revenue from Operations

EXPENSES

Total Expenses

—
II Other Incomes 20 4,026 8,140

—

(5,300)

—

14,326

— —

— —
Total (A) — —

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss — —
Income Tax relating to items that will be

reclassfied to profit or loss — —
Total (B) — —

Other Comprehensive Income (A+B) — —
XVII Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XV+XVI) 49,553 14,326
XVIII Earnings per Equity Share:

(1) Basic 26 1.17 0.34
(2) Diluted 26 1.17 0.34

General Information & Significant Accounting policies
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts

1- 3

As per our Report of even date
For,
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 316155E

Partner
Membership No. 064210
Date : 26.05.20232 Place: Kolkata
UDIN: 23064210BGYOSM1412

B. P. AGARWAL&ASSOCIATES

(AMIT TULSYAN)

Note No.
For the

Year ended
31.03.2022

For the
Year ended
31.03.2023
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For & on Behalf of the Board

Director

Anuj Agarwal (DIN-02984121)
(DIN-10042485)

Sd/-
Anup Chattopadhyay

Poonam Bathwal
Sd/-

Company Secretary
Basant KumarAgarwal

Sd/-
C.F.O.
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1 General Information

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

a. Statement of Compliance

b. Functional and Presentation Currency

c. Basis of Measurement

d. Use of Estimates and Judgement

The Company is a registered non-banking finance company engaged in the business of
providing finance. The Company is registered with Reserve Bank of India as a Non-
Banking Finance Co.(NBFC). The Company is primarily engaged in providing Business
Loans, and is also engaged in Trading and Investment in Shares & Securities.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss and the Statement of Changes in Equity
are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Division III Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act). The statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and
presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’. The Balance
Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss, Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of Changes in
Equity are together referred as the Financial statement of the Company.
The standalone financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 under Section 133 of Act and
relevant amendment rules issued thereafter (’Ind AS’)

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees. All amounts have been
presented in hundreds of Indian Rupees, except share data and as otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards
(’Ind AS’) requires the management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions. These
estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the year. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. The Management believes that the estimates used in
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Some of the areas
involving significant estimation/judgement are determination of Expected Credit Loss, fair
valuation of Investments, Income Taxes, share based payments and employee benefits.
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e. Measurement of Fair Value

3. Significant accounting policies

a Revenue Recognition

I) Interest

ii) Dividend Income

b. Property, Plant & Equipment (”PPE”)

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement
of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values are
categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured and there exists reasonable
certainty of its recovery.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method. The ‘effective
interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the
Financial Asset, or the ammortised cost of the financial liability.
In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit impaired) or to the amortised cost
of the liability.

Dividend income is recognised in statement of profit & loss on the date on which the
Company’s right to receive payment is established.

PPE held for use are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation ans
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost of an item of property, plant & equipment comprises purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable taxes on purchase (goods and service tax), after deducting trade
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discounts and rebates and any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working
condition for its intended use.
Any gain/loss on disposal of an item of property, plany and equipment is recognised in
statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation is recognised using straight line method so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives specified in Schedule II to the
Act. depreciation for additions to/deductions from, owned assets is calculated pro rata to
the period of use.
Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-
end and adjusted if necessary, for each reporting period.

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified and measured
based on the entity’s business model for managing financial asset and contractual cash flow
charecteristics of financial asset at:
- Those measured at Ammortised Cost
- Those measured at Fair Value through Other Compre hensive Income (FVTOCI)
- Those measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Includes assets that are held within a business model where objective is to hold financial
assets to collect contractual cash flows and contractual terms gives rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount
outstanding.
These assets are measured subsequently at ammortised cost using the effective interest
method, Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses, if any and impairment are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Includes assets that are held within a business model where objective is both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets along with contractual terms giving rise

c. Depreciation and Ammortisation

d. Financial Assets

I) Financial Assets at Ammortised Cost

ii) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income



(57)

STEPTWO CORPORATION LIMITED

on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
principal amount outstanding. The Company has made an irrevocable election to present in
other comprehensive income changes in fair value of an investment in any equity
instrument that is not held for trading. This selection is made on instrument-by -instrument
basis.
Dividends are recognised as income in the statement of profit and loss unless it clearly
represents a recovery of part of cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss
The fair values of financial assets in this catagory are determined by reference to active
market transactions or using a valuation technique where no active market exists.

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets that are designated at FVTPL upon
initial recognition and financial assets that are not measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI.
All derivative financial instruments fall into this catagory, except for those designated and
effective as hedging instruments, for which the hedge accounting requirements apply.
Assets in this catagory are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.
The fair values of financial assets in this catagory are determined by reference to active
market transactions or using a valuation technique where no active market exists..

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as fnancial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss or at amortised cost. The Company’s financial liabilities include
borrowings, trade and other payables and derivative financial instruments.
All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an instrument’s fair value that are
reported in the statement of profit and loss are included within finance costs or finance
income.

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange
for the services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees
render thye service. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated
absences which are expected to occure within twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employee renders the related service.

iii) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

e. Financial Liabilities

f. Employee Benefit Expense
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g. Income Taxes

h. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets

i) Provisions

ii) Contingent Liabilities

iii) Contingent Assets

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax expense is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss except when they relate to items that are recognised
outside statement of profit and loss (whether in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity), in which case tax is also recognised outside statement of profit and loss.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for the future tax consequences of
temporary difference between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases, and unutilised business loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax
credits. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax credits could be utilised.
The Corporation provides for current tax liabilities at the best estimate that is expected to be
paid to the tax authorities where an outflow is probable.

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pretax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating
losses are not provided for.

Whenever there is possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed only by the occurance or non-occurance of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the entity or a present obligation that arises from past
events but is not recognised because (a) it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or (b) the amount of
the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability are cnsidered as contingent
liability..

The Company does not recognise contingent assets. These are assessed continually to ensure
that the developments are appropriately disclosed in the standalone financial statements.
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I) Earnings per Share

j) Cash and Cash Equivalent and Cash Flows Statement

k) Segment Reporting

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for events including a bonus issue, bonus elements in a rights
issue to existing shareholders, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other
short term, highly liquid investments maturing within three months from the date of
acquisition and which are readily convertible into cash and which are subject to only an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/(loss) before
extraordnary items and tax is appropriately classified for the effects of transactions of non-
cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future receipts or payments. In cash
flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with banks in
current accounts and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturitis of
three months or less.

The Company’s main business is providing finance by way of loans in India. All other
activities of the Company revolve around the main business. This in the context of Ind AS
108 “Operating Segments” reporting is considered to constitute one reportable segment.
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Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023
(Amount in Rs. ‘00)

4. CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT
814 1,091

(As certified by the management)

- Current Account 26,557 31,359

27,372 32,450
During the financial year 1997-98, a sum of Rs. 2,500,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Lacs
only) had been fraudulently withdrawn from Punjab & Sind Bank Ltd., New Tangra Road
Branch, Kolkata. The matter is under investigation by authorities. The closing balance as per
the book is Rs. 2,502,195/-.

Bank Balance other than Cash & Cash Equivalents
- In deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months 42,500

42,500

Considered Good-Unsecured 81,661 —
Less:-Impairement Loss Allowance — —

81,661 —
Debtors balances are subject to confirmation from the respective parties.

Trade Receivable Aging Schedule - Current, outstanding as on 31/03/2023
Particulars < 6 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total

months - 1 year 3 years
I) Undisputed Trade
Receivable -
Considered Good 81,661 — — — — 81,661

Trade Receivable Aging Schedule - Current, outstanding as on 31/03/2022
Particulars < 6 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total

months - 1 year 3 years
I) Undisputed Trade
Receivable -
Considered Good — — — — —

Cash on Hand

Balance with Bank

5. BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

6. RECEIVABLES
(I) Trade Receivables

—
—

As at
31.03.2023

STEPTWO CORPORATION LIMITED

As at
31.03.2022

—
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7.

9. CURRENT TAXASSET

DEFERRED TAXASSET (Net)

Loans in India, to others
- Loan to Private Sector 85,612 4,69,813

85,612 4,69,813

Security Deposit 1,560 1,560
Margin Money held with broker 4,00,000 —

4,01,560 1,560

Balance with Government Authority
8,889 4,361
8,889 4,361

80
Recognized in profit & loss during the year (3) (39)
Closing Balance 38 41

Movement of Deferred Tax Assets (Liability)

Particulars Opening Profit/Loss OCI Total Closing
Balance Balance

As on 31/03/23

Property, Plant & Equipment 41 (3) — (3) 38

As on 31/03/2022

Proprty, Plant & Equipment 80 (39) — (39) 41

(Unsecured, Repayable on demand, at amortised cost)

(Tax Deducted at source & Self Assessment Tax)

8. OTHER FINANCIALASSETS

10.

Items on Timing Difference

Items on Timing Difference

Opening Balance 41

LOANS

STEPTWO CORPORATION LIMITED

As at
31.03.2023

As at
31.03.2022

(Amount in Rs. ‘00)
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12.

13. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

14. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (Net)

15. PROVISIONS

16. SHARE CAPITAL

Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit 3,545 401
3,545 401

Other Payables 295 655

Provision for Tax 14,255 7,299
14,255 7,299

Contingent Provisions against Standard Assets 214 1,175
214 1,175

53,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 5,35,000 5,35,000
5,35,000 5,35,000

42,47,300 Equity Shares
(P.Y. 42,47,300) of Rs. 10/- each 42,473 42,473
fully paid up in cash

Add:- Share Forfeiture 34,956 34,956
(Amount originally paid up)

4,59,686 4,59,686

At the beginning of the year 42,473 42,473
Forfeited during the year — —
At the end of the year 42,473 42,473

(Audit Fees and other payables)

Note:-8,04,800 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each forfeited on 12th August 2016

295 655

Authorised Share Capital

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up

Reconciliation of No. of Shares outstanding

OTHER NON FINANCIALASSETS

As at
31.03.2022

As at
31.03.2023

STEPTWO CORPORATION LIMITED

(Amount in Rs. ‘00)
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31.03.2023 31.03.2022

Raj Kumar Agarwal 17,839 42.00% 17,839 42.00%
Anuj Agarwal 10,466 24.64% — 0.00%
Pooja Fine Lease Ltd. — — 7,531 17.73%

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
as on 31/03/2023 as on 31/03/2022

S. No. Promoter Name No. of % of Total No. of % of Total % Change
Shares Shares Shares Shares during

the year
1 Raj Kr. Agarwal 17,839 42% 17,839 42% 0%
2 Anuj Agarwal 10,466 25% — 0% 25%
2 Ashok Kr. Sharma 0 0% 100 0% 0%
3 Sapna Agarwal 0 0% 40 0% 0%

Opening Balance 32,533 29,669

Addition during the year 9,911 2,865

(a) 42,444 32,534

Opening Balance 50,426 38,968
Addition during the year 49,553 14,326
Less:- Transfer to Statutory Reserve (9,911) (2,865)
Less: Excess provision Written Back 2,251 —

(b) 92,320 50,426
Total (a+b) 1,34,767 82,963

Share % Share %
5% of shares

Shareholding of Promoters

Statutory Reserve

Retained Earnings

17. OTHER EQUITY

List of Shareholders holding more than

As at
31.03.2022

As at
31.03.2023

STEPTWO CORPORATION LIMITED

(Amount in Rs. ‘00)
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18.

19.

23

Interest on Loans 38,620 38,694
Interest on Income Tax Refund 4 —
Interest on Fixed Deposit 5,059 401

43,683 39,095

Net Gain on financial instruments at fair value through
Profit/Loss account

- On Trading Portfolio
Derivative Profit 42,669 —

42,669 —

Bad Debt Recovered — 8,140
Profit on sale of Investments 4,026 —

4,026 8,140

Interest Paid 3,478 —

3,478 —

Salary & Bonus 3,150 6,900
Directors Remuneration 12,075 7,800

15,225 14,700

.
Depreciation 110 110

110 110

NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES

.
20. OTHER INCOMES

21. FINANCE COST

22. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

DEPRECIATION &AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

(refer note no. 27)

INTEREST INCOME

STEPTWO CORPORATION LIMITED

As at
31.03.2022

As at
31.03.2023

(Amount in Rs. ‘00)



24.

24.1 AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

24.2. RENT, RATES & TAXES

Auditors Fees 295 295
Advertisement Expenses 376 216
Rent 1,020 960
Rates & Taxes 68 68
Legal & Professional Charges 450 3,600
Contingent Provision for Standard Assets (961) 104
Power & Fuel 211 225
Repair & Maintenance 93 93
Balance Written off 32 32
Depository & Registry Expenses 321 729
Donation & Subscription — 1,000
Postage & Telegram 235 248
Printing & Stationary 421 390
Travelling & Conveyance 211 172
General Expenses 178 127
Listing Fees 3,835 3,757
Miscellaneous Expenses 969 704

7,753 12,722

Statutory Audit Fees 295 295

295 295

Professional Tax 25 25
Trade License 43 43

68 68

(Refer Note 24.1)

(Refer Note 24.2)

OTHER EXPENSES

As at
31.03.2022

As at
31.03.2023

(Amount in Rs. ‘00)

STEPTWO CORPORATION LIMITED
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As at
31.03.2022

As at
31.03.2023

(Amount in Rs. ‘00)

25.

26. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Current Tax (14,255) (5,300)
Deferred Tax (3) (39)
Tax for earlier years — (38)

(14,258) (5,377)

Particulars As on 31/03/2023 As on 31/03/2022
% Amount % Amount

Profit before Tax 63,811 19,703
Tax using Company’s Domestic Tax Rate 26% 16,591 26% 5,123

- Expenses not deductible 0% 68 2% 322
- Income which are taxed at different rates 0% — -0% —
- Expenses allowed as deduction 0% (281) -1% (145)
- MAT Credit entitlement -3% (2,123) 0% —
- Taxable Timing difference 0% 3 0% 39
-Tax paid for earlier years 0% — 0% 38

Effective Tax Rate/tax expense 22% 14,258 27% 5,377

Profit/(Loss) after Tax attributable to equity shareholders 49,553 14,326
Weighted Average no. of shares Outstanding 42,473 42,473
Weighted Average no. of shares Outstanding including 42,473 42,473

potential equity shares [Diluted]
Basic Earning per Share (Rs.) 1.17 0.34
Diluted Earning per Share (Rs.) 1.17 0.34

Amount recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Effect of:

INCOME TAX
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27. Schedule to the Balance Sheet of Non-deposit taking Non-Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016)

Loans and advances availed by the Non banking
financial company inclusiveof interest accrued thereon but not paid:

Amount Amount

Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public
deposits inclusive of interest accrued

Amount outstanding
Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills
receivables [other than those included

Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and
other assets counting towards asset financial activities

(Amount in ‘000)

(1)

(a) Debentures : Secured NIL NIL
: Unsecured NIL NIL

(other than falling within the
meaning of public deposits*)

(b) Deferred Credits NIL NIL
(c) Term Loans NIL NIL
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing NIL NIL
(e) Commercial Paper NIL NIL
(f) Public Deposits* NIL NIL
(g) Other Loans (Loan from related parties) NIL NIL
* Please see Note 1 below

(2)

(a) In the form of Unsecured debentures NIL NIL
(b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e.

debentures where there is a shortfall in the
value of security NIL NIL

(c) Other public deposits NIL NIL
* Please see Note 1 below

(3)

(a) Secured NIL
(b) Unsecured 8,561

(4)
NIL

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
(a) Financial lease NIL
(b) Operating lease NIL

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
(a) Assets on hire NIL
(b) Repossessed Assets NIL

(iii) Other loans counting towards asset financing activities:
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed NIL
(b) Loans other than (a) above NIL

Particulars
Liabilities side

outstanding overdue

thereon
but not paid):

Assets side :

in (4) below]:

:
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(5)

(i) Shares : (a) Equity NIL
(b) Preference NIL

(ii) Debentures and Bonds NIL
(iii) Units of mutual funds NIL
(iv) Government Securities NIL
(v) Others (please specify) NIL

(i) Shares : (a) Equity NIL
(b) Preference NIL

(ii) Debentures and Bonds NIL
(iii) Units of mutual funds NIL
(iv) Government Securities NIL
(v) Others (please specify) NIL

(i) Share : (a) Equity NIL
(b) Preference NIL

(ii) Debentures and Bonds NIL
(iii) Units of mutual funds NIL
(iv) Government Securities NIL
(v) Others (Please specify) NIL

(i) Shares : (a) Equity NIL
(b) Preference NIL

(ii) Debentures and Bonds NIL
(iii) Units of mutual funds NIL
(iv) Government Securities NIL
(v) Others (Please specify) NIL

(6)
Please see Note 2 below

1. Related Parties ** Nil Nil Nil
(a) Subsidiaries Nil Nil Nil
(b) Companies in the same group Nil Nil Nil
(c) Other related parties Nil Nil Nil

2. Other than related parties Nil 8,561 8,561
1.3 Nil 8,561 8,561

Break-up of Investments :
Current Investments :

Quoted :

Unquoted :

Long Term investments :
Quoted :

Unquoted :

1.

2.

1.

2.

Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above:

Category Amount net of provisions
Secured Unsecured Total

Total
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(7) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and
securities (both quoted and unquoted):
Please see note 3 below
Category Market Value / Break Book Value

up or fair value or (Net of
NAV Provisions)

1. Related Parties **
(a) Subsidiaries NIL NIL
(b) Companies in the same group NIL NIL
(c) Other related parties NIL NIL

2. Other than related parties NIL NIL
1.5

** As per Accounting Standard of ICAI (Please see Note 3)

(8)

(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets NIL
(a) Related parties NIL
(b) Other than related parties NIL

(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets NIL
(a) Related parties NIL
(b) Other than related parties NIL

(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt NIL

1. As defined in Point xxv of Paragraph 3 of Chapter - II of these Directions.

2. Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in these Directions,

3. All notified Accounting Standards and Guidance Notes issued by ICAI are applicable
including for valuation of investments and other assets as also assets acquired in satisfaction
of debt. However, market value in respect of quoted investments and break up/fair
value/NAV in respect of unquoted investments should be disclosed irrespective of whether
they are classified as long term (amortised cost in the case of Ind AS) or current (fair value
in the case of Ind AS) in (5) above.

Total NIL NIL

Other information
Particulars Amount

Notes :



(B)
Amount in Rs. ‘000
FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

(I). Exposure

Total Exposure to Capital Markets — —

Total of Services 8,561 46,981

Disclosure requirement under Scale Based Regulations for NBFCs

1. Exposure in Real Estate Sector Nil Nil

2. Exposure to Capital Markets
Direct Investment in Equity Shares, Convertible Bonds
Convertible Debentures, Unit of Equity Oriented
Mutual Funds — —

3. Sector Exposure
a. Industry

- Micro and Small
Total Exposure — 15,128
Gross NPA — —
Percentage of Gross NPA to total exposure
in the sector — —

Total of Industry — 15,128
b. Services

- NBFC
Total Exposure — 2,789
Gross NPA — —
Percentage of Gross NPA to total exposure
in the sector — —

-Wholesale and Retail Trade
Total Exposure — 4,932
Gross NPA — —
Percentage of Gross NPA to total exposure
in the sector — —

- Other Services
Total Exposure 8,561 24,132
Gross NPA — —
Percentage of Gross NPA to total exposure
in the sector — —

(71)
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— —

(ii) Related Party Disclosure

(iii) Disclosure of Complaints

4. Intra-Group Exposures
Total amount of Intra-Group loan exposure
Total amount of Top 20 Intra group loan exposure — —
Percentage of intra-groip exposures to total

exposures of the NBFC on borrowers 0.00% 0.00%

5. Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure NA NA

Please refer note no 23 of the Notes to Accounts.

1. Summary information on complaints received by NBFCs
from customers and from Office of Ombudsman NIL NIL

2. Top Five grounds of complaints received by the NBFCs
from Customers Nil Nil

STEPTWO CORPORATION LIMITED
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28.
Related Parties with whom transactions have been entered during the year:

Bholanath Manna* Key Management Remunaration 4,000 4,000
Personnel

Sanjay Agarwal* Key Management No Transactions — —
Personnel

Keshav Kumar Saraf* Key Management No Transactions — —
Personnel

Anuj Agarwal* Key Management Remuneration 4,000 —
Personnel

Poonam Bathwal* Key Management Remuneration 75 —
Personnel

Anup Chattopadhyay* Key Management No Transactions — —
Personnel

Laxmi Kant Jajodia* Key Management No Transactions — —
Personnel

Mamta Sharma* Key Management Remuneration 2,875 3,000
Personnel

Basant Kumar Agarwal* Key Management Remuneration 1,125 1,500
Personnel

Note:
* Mr. Bhola nath Manna ceased to be a director from 16.01.2023
* Mr. Sanjay Agarwal ceased to be a director from 16.01.2023
* Mr. Keshav Kumar Saraf ceased to be a director from 15.03.2023
* Ms. Mamta Sharma ceased to be a director from 15.03.2023
* Mr. Anuj Agarwal appointed as a Managing Director from 16.01.2023
* Mr. Laxmi Kant Jajodia appointed as a Director from 16.01.2023
* Mr. Anup Chattopadhyay appointed as a Director from 15.03.2023
* Ms. Poonam Bathwalappointed as a Director from 15.03.2023

Name of Related Party Relation Nature of transaction Amount(Rs.) Amount(Rs.)

Related Party Disclosure
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29
I. The Company does not possess any immovable property whose title deeds are not held in

the name ofCompany.
ii. TheCompanyhas not revalued anyof its Property, Plant&Equipment.
iii. No Loans or Advances have been granted to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and the Related

Party, either jointly or severallywith any other person.
iv. TheCompanydoes not have anyCapital-Work-in-Progress.
v. TheCompanydoes not have any IntangibleAssets underDevelopment.
vi. No Proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any

Benami Property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 and the rules
made thereunder.

vii. The Company has no borrowings from Banks or Financial Institutions on the basis of
Security ofCurrentAssets.

viii. The Company is not declared as aWilful Defaulter by any Bank or Financial Institutions or
other Lender.

ix. The Company has no transactions with companies Struck off under Section 248 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

x. The Company does not have anyCharges/Satisfaction thereof which are yet to be registered
withRegistrar of Companies beyond theStatutory Period.

xi. The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of
Section2 of theAct readwith rules.

xii. Ratios

I. Capital to risk
weighted asset Total Equity RiskWeightedAsset* 1.04 1.15 -9%
ratio (CRAR)

ii. Tier I CRAR Tier I Capital* RiskWeightedAsset* 1.04 1.15 -9%

iii. Tier IICRAR Tier II Capital RiskWeightedAsset* 0.00 0.00 0%

iv. Liquidity TotalHighQuality TotalNetCash 88% 7389% -99%
Coverage** LiquidAssets Outflowover the

next 30days*
* AsperMasterDirection issued byRBI.
** TheLiquidityCoverageRatio has increased due to increase inHighQuality LiquidAssets.
xiii. No Scheme of Arrangement has been proposed by the Competent Authority in terms of

Section230 toSection 237of theCompaniesAct, 2013.
xiv. A.No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either fromborrowed funds or share

premiumor any other sources or kind of funds) by theCompany to or in any other persons or

S.No. Ratio Numerator Denominator 2022-23 2021-22 C h a n g e
%

AdditionalRegulatoryRequirements



STEPTWO CORPORATION LIMITED

(75)

entities, including foreign entities (”Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (”Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of theUltimateBeneficiaries.
B. No funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities (”Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded inwriting or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in anymannerwhatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(”Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
UltimateBeneficiaries.

xv. The Company does not have any transactions not recorded in the Books of Accounts that
has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the TaxAssessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961. there are no Previously Unrecorded Income and related assets
that have been recorded in theBooks ofAccounts during the year.

xvi. TheCompany is not coveredunder Section 135of theCompaniesAct.
xvii. The Company has not traded in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the Financial

Year.

The Company’s main business is providing finance by way of loans in India.All other activities
of the Company revolve around the main business. As such, there are no separate reportable
segments, as per the IndianAccountingStandard (IndAS) 108on“SegmentReporting”.

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to
minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company, the company has
riskmanagement policies as described below :-

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may occure from the failure of any party to abide by the
terms and conditions of any contract, principally the failure to make required payments of
amounts due to the Company. In it’s lending operations, the Company is principally
exposed to credit risk.
The Board of Directors periodically review its Credit Risks and oversee the Loan Sanction
Process to eliminate the risk of loss due toCredit Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the
obligations associatedwith financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. Managementmonitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position
on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

30. SegmentReporting

31. FinancialRiskManagement

I) CreditRisk

ii) LiquidityRisk
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Asat 31stMarch2023

Particulars Less than 1-5Year 5+Year Total
Year

As at 31stMarch2022
Particulars Less than 1-5Year 5+Year Total

Year

iii) MarketRisk

Borrowing - - - 0
Trade Payable _ _ _ 0

Other Financial Liability 295 - - 295

Borrowing - - - 0
Trade Payable _ _ _ 0

Other Financial Liability 655 - - 655

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may
result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial
instrumentmay change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange
rates, commodity prices, equity prices and other market changes that effect market risk
sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial
instruments including investments and deposits, foreign currency receivables, payables and
borrowings. The Group is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments
and specifically to interest rate risk and certain other price risks, which result from both its
operating and investing activities.

- Interest rate risk: Interest rate is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company does not havesignificant exposure to Long Term Borrowings. So the Company
does not have a significant cash flow interest rate risk.

Foreign Currency Risk: Foreign Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company does not face any ForeignCurrencyRisk.

- Equity Price Risk: The Company generally invests in listed and unlisted equity
instruments.All investments in equity portfolio are reviewed and approved by the Board of
Directors. As at the reporting date, the exposure to listed equity securities at fair value was
Rs. 0 (March 31, 2022:Rs. 0)

MaturityProfile ofFinancialLiabilities is as belows:
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-

eviewed and approved by the
board of directors. As at the reporting date, the exposure in derivative instruments at fair
valuewasRs 0 (March 31, 2022:Rs 0)

Accounting classification and FairValues
Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and liabilities, including their levels in fair
value hierarchy, are as follows:

Cash&CashEquivalent - - 27,372 - - 32,450
Bank balance other than - - - - - - 42,500

cash&cash equivalent
Receivables - - 81,661 - - -
Loans - - 85,612 - - 4,69,813
Other FinancialAssets - - 4,01,560 - - 1,560

Total - - - -
FinancialLiabilities
Other Financial Liabilities - - 295 - - 655

Total - - - -

FinancialAssets
Cash&CashEquivalent - - 27,372 - - 32,450
Bank balance other than - - - - - 42,500

cash&cash equivalent
Receivables - - 81,661 - - -
Loans - - 85,612 - - 4,69,813
Other FinancialAssets - - 1,560 - - 1,560

Total - - - -
FinancialLiabilities
Other Financial Liabilities - - 295 - - 655

Total - - - -

32. FairValueMeasurement

5,96,204 5,46,323

295 655

As on31/03/2023 As on31/03/2022

1,96,204 5,46323

295 655

As on 31/03/2023 As on 31/03/2022

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Particulars FVTPL FVTOCI Ammortised FVTPL FVTOCI Ammortised
Cost Cost

FinancialAssets

Other Price Risk : The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes inmarket prices (other than those arising from interest rate
risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
financial instrument or its issuer or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments
traded in the market.All exposures in derivative portfolio are r
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Statement of changes in equity for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

A) Equity Share Capital

Balance as on 31/03.2022

Balance as on 31/03/2023

Balance as on 31/03/2021

Balance as on 31/03/2022

B) Other Equity

Particulars Reserves & Surplus
Statutory Reserves Retained Earnings Total

Balance as on 31/03/2022 28,937 50,428 79,366

Balance as on 31/03/2023 38,848 92,322 1,31,169

Particulars Reserves & Surplus

Statutory Reserves Retained Earnings Total
Balance as on 01/04/2021 26,072 38,968 65,040

Balance as on 31/03/2022 28,937 50,428 79,366

1) As on 31/03/2023
4,59,68,648

Change in equity due to prior period errors —
Restated balance at the beginning of the year 4,59,68,648
Changes in equity share capital during the year —

4,59,68,648

2) As on 31/03/2022
45,968,648

Change in equity due to prior period errors —
Restated balance at the beginning of the year 4,59,68,648
Changes in equity share capital during the year —

4,59,68,648

1) As on 31/03/2023

Profit/(Loss) for the year — 49,533 49,533
Excess Provision written back — 2,251 2,251
Transfer to/(from) Retained Earnings 9,911 (9,911) —

2) As on 31/03/2022

Profit/(Loss) for the year — 14,326 14,326
Transfer to/(from) Retained Earnings 2,865 (2,865) —
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Nature and Purpose of Reserves
a) Retained Earnings

b) Statutory Reserve

B. P. AGARWAL&ASSOCIATES

(AMIT TULSYAN)

This reserve represents undistributed accumulated earnings of the Company as on Balance Sheet
Date.

This reserve is created in compliance with section - 451C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 at
the rate of 20% of the profit after tax of the year.

For,
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 316155E

Partner
Membership No. 064210
Date : 26.05.2023
Place: Kolkata
UDIN: 23064210BGYOSM1412
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For & on Behalf of the Board

Director

Anuj Agarwal (DIN-02984121)
(DIN-10042485)

Sd/-
Anup Chattopadhyay

Poonam Bathwal
Sd/-

Company Secretary
Basant KumarAgarwal

Sd/-
C.F.O.
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Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

A. Net Cash from Operational Activities

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Net Profit before Taxes 63,811 19,703

Depreciation &Amortisation 110 110

Net (Gain)/loss on sale of Investments (4,026) —

Provision for Contingencies (961) 104

Balance Written Off 32 32

Operating Profit/(Loss) before change in Working Capital 58,967 19,949

Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in operating assets:

Trade receivables (81,661) 39,000

Loans 3,84,201 (41,528)

Other Financial assets (4,00,000) 13,000

Other Non-Financial Assets (3,143) 19,599

Adjustments for increase /(decrease) in operating liabilities:

Other Financial Liabilities (360) (4,653)

(41,996) 45,367

Net income tax (paid)/refunds (9,609) (3,711)

Net Cash from Operating Activities A (51,604 41,656

Purchase of Investments (4,00,000) —

Purchase of Fixed Deposits — (42,500)

Sale proceeds from Fixed Deposits 42,500 —

Proceeds from sale of Investments 4,04,026 —

Cash Flow from Investing Activities B 46,526 (42,500)

Adjustments

2022-23
Amount (Rs.)

2021-22
Amount (Rs.)

(Amount in Rs. ‘00)
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C. s

Notes to Cash Flow Statement

B. P. AGARWAL&ASSOCIATES

(AMIT TULSYAN)

Cash Flow from Financial Activities C — —

Net Increase in Cash & Cash equivalent (A+B+C) (5,078) (844)

Cash & Cash equivalent (Opening Balance) 32,450 33,294

Cash & Cash Equivalent (Closing Balance) 27,372 32,450

1. Previous year's figures have re-grouped & re-cast wherever necessary

2. Cash & Cash Equivalent at the end of year

-Balances in Current Account 26,557 31,359

-Cash In Hand 814 1,091

27,372 32,450

1. During the financial year 1997-98, a sum of Rs. 25,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Lacs
only) had been fraudulently withdrawn from Punjab & Sind Bank, New Tangra Road
Branch, Kolkata. The matter is under investigation by authorities. The closing balance
as per books is Rs. 25,02,195/-. The same has been included in Cash & Cash
Equivalents.

2. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under “Indirect Method”.

For,
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 316155E

Partner
Membership No. 064210
Date : 26.05.2023
Place: Kolkata
UDIN: 23064210BGYOSM1412

Notes

Cash Flow from Financing Activitie

2022-23
Amount (Rs.)

2021-22
Amount (Rs.)

(Amount in Rs. ‘00)

For & on Behalf of the Board

Director

Anuj Agarwal (DIN-02984121)
(DIN-10042485)

Sd/-
Anup Chattopadhyay

Poonam Bathwal
Sd/-

Company Secretary
Basant KumarAgarwal

Sd/-
C.F.O.
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